
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 

 
A G E N D A 

      
DATE:  Wednesday, January 20, 2016 
CLOSED MEETING:     6:30 P.M.  
REGULAR MEETING:  7:00 P.M. 

≠ Denotes resolution prepared  
 

1. Call the Meeting to Order  
 

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest & the General Nature Thereof.  
 
3. Adoption and Receipt of Minutes of the Previous Meeting. ≠ 

  
(a) Council Meeting - January 6, 2016  
(b) Closed Council Meeting – January 6, 2016  

 
4. Business Arising Out of the Minutes.  
 
5. PUBLIC MEETINGS 

 
1.  2016 Proposed Budget  

 
*note this Public Meeting will be held on Thursday, January 21, 2016 at 7:00 
p.m. at the Municipal Complex– 7404 Wellington Rd. 34, Guelph 

 
(a) Notice of Public Meeting  

  
6. COMMUNICATIONS  
 

1. CBM Aggregates Puslinch Pit  
Licence #17600  
4313 Sideroad 25 S 
 
(a) Correspondence from Aercoustics Engineering Ltd. regarding CBM 

Aggregates Puslinch (PQA) Pit Acoustical Audit 2015, Puslinch Quality 
Aggregates (PQA) Pit (License#17600) North Halt of Lot 26, Conc. 1, 
Township of Puslinch, County of Wellington dated November 6, 2015.   

 
  

 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
January 20, 2016 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 2 
 

2. Wellington Source Water Protection   
 

(a)  Correspondence from Mr. Kyle Davis, Risk Management Official to Mayor 
and Members of Council regarding Source Protection Database Collaboration 
Agreement dated January 5, 2016. ≠ 
 

(b) Draft Collaboration Agreement for Local Source Water Information 
Management System (LSWIMS). ≠ 
 

(c) Township of Puslinch 2015 Risk Management Official Annual Report. ≠ 
 

3. Request to Waive Fees  
 

(a) Correspondence from Aberfoyle Agricultural Society regarding request to 
waive rental fees for fundraising event at the Puslinch Community Centre, 
Sunday, February 28, 2016 dated January 10, 2016. ≠ 

 
4. University of Guelph/Dufferin Aggregates  

Mill Creek Pit – Licence 5738  
7115 Concession 2 
 

(a) Correspondence from Dufferin Aggregates regarding Mill Creek Property 
Annual Monitoring Report dated March 30, 2015  
 

(b) LRG Environmental Mill Creek Coordinated Monitoring Report January 1 to 
December 31, 2014 dated March 26, 2015.  *note a full copy of the report 
is available in the Clerk’s Office for review.  
 

(c) Correspondence from Harden Environmental Services Ltd. regarding Mill 
Creek Pit Review of 2014 Monitoring Data dated December 3, 2015.   

  
5. CBM St. Mary’s Cement – McMillan Pit 

Part Lot 22, Concession 1  
 

(a) Correspondence from Ministry of Natural Resources regarding Partial 
surrender of Licence #5737 (CBM McMillan Pit) dated July 6, 2010.  *note 
the Ministry has advised that the partial surrender was approved in 
2010, however, revised site plans were not circulated to the various 
agencies.  The information provided is a copy of the new approved site 
plan for licence #5737 showing the remaining 5.6 ha of licenced area.  A 
copy of the approved site plan is available in the Clerk’s office for 
viewing.  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
January 20, 2016 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 3 
 

 
6. Halton-Hamilton Source Water Protection Committee  

 
(a) Correspondence from Ms. Susan Fielding to Halton-Hamilton Source 

Protection Committee regarding resignation from Committee dated December 
9, 2015.≠   

 
7. Intergovernmental Affairs ≠ 

 
(a) Various correspondence for review.   

 
7. DELEGATIONS / PRESENTATIONS 
 

1. 7:05 p.m. Ms. Sarah Bowers-Peter, Program Coordinator, Crime Stoppers 
Guelph Wellington regarding Crime Stoppers Month.   
 

2. 7:20 p.m. Mr. Kyle Davis, Risk Management Official regarding Source Protection 
Database Collaboration Agreement. (See Agenda Items 6.2(a)(b)(c))   

 
8. REPORTS  

1. Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services  
 

(a) Report FIR-2016-001 – Update Quint Truck Purchase* to be distributed under 
separate cover on Monday, January 18, 2016.        
  

2. Finance Department  
 

(a) None.  
   

3. Administration Department   
 

(a) Report ADM-2016-001 – Mini Lakes Residents Association – Condominium 
Development Agreement – Condominium Plan 214 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
January 20, 2016 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 4 
 

  

4. Planning and Building  
 

(a) County of Wellington Planning and Development Department Report regarding 
Second Review D14/FRO (Frosch) – Zoning By-law Amendment – 6525 
Concession 1 (Part Lots 1, 2 & 3, Gore Concession), Puslinch dated January 11, 
2016. ≠ 
  

(b)  Chief Building Official Report – December 2015.  ≠ 

5. Roads & Parks Department 
 

None.  

6. Recreation Department  
 
None.  

7. Mayor’s Updates  
 

None.  
 
9. NOTICES OF MOTION  
 
 None.  
 
10. COMMITTEE MINUTES ≠ 
 

(a) Committee of Adjustments – December 8, 2015  
(b) Planning and Development Advisory Committee – December 8, 2015  

 
11. MUNICIPAL ANNOUCEMENTS 
 
12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
January 20, 2016 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 5 
 

 
13. CLOSED ITEMS ≠ 

 
(a) Confidential Verbal Report from Donna Tremblay Deputy Clerk, regarding 

litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals 
affecting the municipality or local board – 599 Arkell Rd. 
   

14. BY-LAWS ≠  
 

(a) A by-law to provide for an interim tax levy for 2016 and the collection thereof. 
 

(b) A by-law to appoint members to the Planning and Development Advisory 
Committee – Committee of Adjustment and amend By-Law 09/15.  

 
15. CONFIRMING BY-LAW ≠ 
 

(a) By-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the 
Township of Puslinch.  

 
16. ADJOURNMENT ≠ 

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
January 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 9 
 

 
M I N U T E S 

 
DATE:  Wednesday, January 6, 2016  
TIME:   12:30 p.m. 

 
The January 6, 2016 Regular Council Meeting was held on the above date and called to order 
at 12:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers, Aberfoyle.  
 
1. ATTENDANCE:   

 
Mayor Dennis Lever  
Councillor Matthew Bulmer 
Councillor Susan Fielding  
Councillor Ken Roth  
Councillor Wayne Stokley  
 
STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: 

 
1. Donna Tremblay, Deputy Clerk 
2. Paul Creamer, Director of Finance/Treasurer 
3. Robert Kelly, Chief Building Official 
4. Steve Goode, Fire Chief  

    
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE 
 
1. Doug Smith  
2. Karen Lever 
3.  George and Norma Uptegrove  
  
 

2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST & THE GENERAL NATURE THEREOF: 
 
None.  
 

3. ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES: 
 

(a) Public Meeting – Community Improvement Plan - November 6, 2015  
(b) Budget Meeting – November 25, 2015  
(c) Council Meeting –December 16, 2015 
(d) Closed Council Meeting –December 16, 2015 

 
Resolution No. 2016-001:  Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

Seconded by Councillor Stokley  
 
That the minutes of the following meetings be received:  
 
(a) Public Meeting – Community Improvement Plan - November 6, 2015 
 
That the minutes of the following meetings be adopted as written and distributed:  

 
(b) Budget Meeting – November 25, 2015  
(c) Council Meeting –December 16, 2015, as amended  
(d) Closed Council Meeting –December 16, 2015 
 
CARRIED 

 
4. BUSINESS ARISING OUT OF THE MINUTES: 

 
None.  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
January 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 2 of 9 
 

 
5. PUBLIC MEETINGS:  

 
1.  Community Based Strategic Plan  
 
*note this Public Meeting will be held on Thursday, January 14, 2016 at  
7:00 p.m. at the Puslinch Community Centre , 23 Brock Road South 
 

(a)   Notice of Public Meeting  
 
2.  2016 Proposed Budget  
 
*note this Public Meeting will be held on Thursday, January 21, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. at 
the Municipal Complex– 7404 Wellington Rd. 34, Guelph 
 

(a) Notice of Public Meeting  
 
3. Morriston Streetscaping  
 
*note this Public Meeting will be held on Thursday,  February 4, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. at 
the Municipal Complex– 7404 Wellington Rd. 34, Guelph 
 

(a) Notice of Public Meeting  
 

6. COMMUNICATIONS: 
  
1. Mill Creek Pit, Licence No. 5738 

7115 Concession 2  
 

(a) Correspondence from Dufferin Aggregates regarding Monthly Monitoring Report, Mill 
Creek Pit, License No. 5738, Township of Puslinch, Wellington County (November 
2015) dated December 9, 2015.   
 
Mr. Stan Denhoed, Harden Environmental Services Ltd. has reviewed the report 
and advised that he has no comments.  

 
  2. Hamilton Conservation Authority    
 

(a) Correspondence from Hamilton Conservation Authority regarding resignation by David 
Rodgers from Board of Hamilton Conservation Authority dated December 11, 2015. 

 
 3. Council appointments to Various Committees: ≠ 

 
Mayor Lever advised that in addition to appointments to various Committees, that Council 
would also be appointing members to various organizations.   

 
(a)  Planning and Development Advisory Committee and Committee of Adjustments. 
(b) Community Oriented Police 
(c) Emergency Management 
(d) Friends of Mill Creek  
(e) Puslinch Lake Conservation Association  
(f) Badenoch Committee  
(g) Recreation Committee  
(h) Well Protection Committee  
(i) Hamilton Conservation Authority  

 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
January 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 3 of 9 
 

Resolution No. 2016-002:  Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
Seconded by Councillor Fielding  

 
That Council hereby appoints representatives to the following Committees/Organizations as 
follows:  

 
Committee Member Term  
Planning & Development Advisory 
Committee 

Councillor Roth  2016 

Community Oriented Police Councillor Stokley 2016 
Emergency Management 
(Alternate to Mayor)   

Councillor Roth 2018 

Friends of Mill Creek  Councillor Bulmer 2016 
Puslinch Lake Conservation 
Association  

Councillor Fielding 2016 

Badenoch Committee  Councillor Bulmer  2016 
Recreation Committee  Councillor Stokley 2016 
Well Protection Committee Councillor Bulmer 2016 
Hamilton Conservation Authority  Councillor Fielding  2018 

 
CARRIED  

 
 

4.  Intergovernmental Affairs ≠ 
 

(a) Various correspondence for review.  
 

 Resolution No. 2016-003:   Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
 Seconded by Councillor Fielding  
 

That the correspondence items listed on the Council Agenda for January 6, 2016 
Council meeting be received. 
 
CARRIED 
 

7. DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 
 

1. Mr. John Uptegrove, Capitan of Training, Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services, 
presentation of Ontario Association of Fire Training Officers 2015 Training Officer of the 
Year Award.  
 
Mayor and Members of Council presented Mr. John Uptegrove with the Ontario 
Association of Fire Training Officers 2015 Training Officer of the Year.  
 

8. REPORTS: 
 

1. Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services  
 

(a) Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services Monthly Report – November, 2015  
 
Resolution No. 2016-004:  Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

   Seconded by Councillor Stokley  
 

That Council receive the Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services Response Report for 
November, 2015.   

 
CARRIED  

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
January 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 4 of 9 
 

 
(b) Quint Truck -  Verbal Update – Steve Goode, Fire Chief  

 
Steve Goode, Fire Chief advised Council that he has been advised by Dependable 
Emergency Vehicles that a quint truck will become available in mid-February. Chief 
Goode advised that the vehicle available is a trade-in from the Town of Richmond Hill is 
15 years of age and is a 55’ ladder truck with a pumper capacity of 400 gallons to 500 
gallons.  
 
Chief Goode advised that the current asking price is $164,000 not including HST, and 
will be 25% eligible for Development Charges funding with the balance to be paid from 
reserves.   
 
Chief Goode advised that the fire department has had mechanics inspect the truck and 
have scheduled additional inspections. 
 
Chief Goode advised that there is another fire department that is interested in the 
vehicle and that that Township will be required to confirm their interest by mid-January, 
2016.  
 
Resolution No. 2016-005:  Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
   Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 
That Council receive the verbal update from Steve Goode, Fire Chief regarding the 
availability for purchase of a quint truck from Dependable Emergency Vehicles; and  
 
That Council authorize the Fire Chief to work with the Chief Administrative Officer and 
Director of Finance with respect to investigation and negotiations to determine whether 
the purchase of a quint truck from Dependable Emergency Vehicles is a viable option; 
and   
 
That staff report back to Council on the results.  
 
CARRIED   
 

2. Finance Department  
 

(a) Financial Reports – November 2015 ≠ 
 

i. Financial Report as of November 30, 2015 
ii. Cheque Register – November 1, 2015 to November 30, 2015  
iii. Financial Report by Department – November 2015 
iv. Total Revenues, Contributions from Working Reserves and Expenditures – All 

Departments – November, 2015. 
 

Resolution No. 2015-006:  Moved by Councillor Roth and  
   Seconded by Councillor Bulmer  
 
i. Financial Report as of November 30, 2015 
ii. Cheque Register – November 1, 2015 to November 30, 2015  
iii. Financial Report by Department – November 2015 
iv. Total Revenues, Contributions from Working Reserves and Expenditures – All 

Departments – November, 2015. 
 
CARRIED  

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
January 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 5 of 9 
 

 
(b) Applications for Cancellation, Reduction or Refund of Taxes re:  Chapter 25, Section 

357, 358, the Municipal Act, S.O., 2001. ≠ 
 

Resolution No. 2015-007:  Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  
   Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 
That Council does hereby authorize the applications for Cancellation, Reduction or Refund 
of Taxes chapter 25, section 357 or 358 of the Municipal Act, 2001 as follows: 

 
CARRIED  

 
3. Administration Department 

 
None.  
 

4. Planning and Building Department  
 
(a) County of Wellington Planning Committee Report – Bill 140 – Second Unit and 

Garden Suite Policies dated November 12, 2015. ≠ 
 

Resolution No. 2015-008:  Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  
   Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 

That Council receive the County of Wellington Planning Committee Report – Bill 140 – 
Second Unit and Garden Suite Policies dated November 12, 2015; and  
 
That Council supports the recommendations contained in the County of Wellington 
Planning Committee Report – Bill 140 – Second Unit and Garden Suite Policies dated 
November 12, 2015; and  
 
That staff advise the County of Wellington Planning Department. 
 
CARRIED 
 

5. Roads & Parks Department  
 
 None.  

 
6. Recreation Department 

 
None.  
 

7. Mayor’s Updates  
 

None.  
    

9. NOTICE OF MOTION:  
  
(a) Councillor Roth – Operation of Rink pad at Optimist Recreation Centre.  

  

Year Application # Roll # Write Off Amount 
2014 13/15 8-13200 $    829.34 
2015 14/15 8-13200 $ 1,424.32 
2015 18/15 2-07300 $ 1,658.19 
2013 15/15 5-08800 $ 1,133.38 
2014 16/15 5-08800 $ 1,184.66 
2015 17/15 5-08800 $ 1,238.34 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
January 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 6 of 9 
 

 
Resolution No. 2016-009:   Moved by Councillor Roth and  
   Seconded by Councillor Bulmer  
 
WHEREAS the Optimist Recreation Centre hereinafter referred to as the ORC was 
constructed in 2010/2011; and 

 
WHEREAS the revenue and expenses for the ORC rink over the past few years have been: 

 

    2013 2014 
2015 (to 
Nov 30) 

Revenues     
01-0015-2600 Ice Rental - Prime 

$97,956 

$37,848 $34,088 
01-0015-2700 Ice Rental - Non-Prime $2,002 $1,613 
01-0015-2800 Arena Summer Rentals $21,855 $17,306 
01-0015-2900 Gymnasium Rental $12,020 $12,546 

 Other Revenues $1,894 $1,997 
Total 
Revenues 

 
$97,956 $75,969 $67,551 

Total 
Expenses  $162,452 $181,576 $133,336 
Net 
Expenditures  $64,496 $105,607 $65,785 

 
WHEREAS the capacity to install and retain ice is impacted by weather conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS it is prudent for a municipality to review established service levels and explore 
new opportunities to optimize the functionality of its facilities; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that an ad-hoc Committee hereinafter referred to as 
ORCP (ORC Pad) Committee be established for the purpose of: 
 
1. Analyzing and evaluating the past and present data related to revenue, expenses and 

user fees for the ice pad;  
 

2. Current service level delivery for the ice pad both on and off season, and methods of 
the delivery of those services; 
 

3. Explore new opportunities for optimizing the use of the ice pad including options to 
extend the ice season and the feasibility of other pad sporting activities; and 
 

That the ORCP bring forward its recommendations for comment to the Recreation and 
Parks Committee prior to submitting its report and recommendations to Council for 
consideration; and 

 
That the ORCP be composed of the following members: 
 

• 2 Members of Council (with 1 member being appointed as Chair) 
• 1 Member of the Recreation and Parks Committee 
• Director of Public Works and Parks 
• CAO/Clerk and/or Director of Finance  

 
CARRIED  

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
January 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 7 of 9 
 

 
10. COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
(a) Recreation Committee –November 17, 2015  
 
Resolution No. 2016-010:   Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  

Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 
That Council hereby receives the following minutes as information:  

 
(a) Recreation Committee – November 17, 2015. 

 
CARRIED 
 

11. MUNICIPAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
None.  
 

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
None.  
 

13. CLOSED MEETING 
 

Council was in closed session from 12:32 p.m. to 12:50 p.m.  
Council recessed from 12:52 p.m. to 1:00 p.m. 

 
(a) Confidential Verbal Report from Donna Tremblay Deputy Clerk, regarding litigation or 

potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board – 599 Arkell Rd. 

 
(b) Confidential Verbal Report from Paul Creamer, Director of Finance/Treasurer, regarding 

litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting 
the municipality or local board  and advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, 
including communications necessary for that purpose–  Assessment Appeal 

 
Resolution No. 2016-011:     Moved by Councillor Roth and  

 Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 
 

That Council shall go into closed session under Section 239 of the Municipal Act for the 
purpose of: 

 
(a) Confidential Verbal Report from Donna Tremblay Deputy Clerk, regarding litigation or 

potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board – 599 Arkell Rd. 

 
(b) Confidential Verbal Report from Paul Creamer, Director of Finance/Treasurer, regarding 

litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting 
the municipality or local board  and advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, 
including communications necessary for that purpose–  Assessment Appeal. 
 

(c) Confidential Verbal Report from Steve Goode, Fire Chief, regarding personal matters 
about an identifiable individual municipal or local board employees – Employee Matter. 

  
CARRIED 

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
January 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 8 of 9 
 

 
Resolution No. 2016-012    Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

 Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 

That Council move into open session. 
 
CARRIED 

 
(a) Confidential Verbal Report from Donna Tremblay Deputy Clerk, regarding litigation or 

potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board – 599 Arkell Rd.  
 
Resolution No. 2016-013    Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  

  Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 

That Council receive the Confidential Verbal Report from Donna Tremblay Deputy 
Clerk, regarding litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative 
tribunals affecting the municipality or local board – 599 Arkell Rd.  
 
CARRIED  

 
(b) Confidential Verbal Report from Paul Creamer, Director of Finance/Treasurer, regarding 

litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting 
the municipality or local board  and advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, 
including communications necessary for that purpose–  Assessment Appeal; and  
 
Resolution No. 2016-014:   Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

            Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

That Council receive the Confidential Verbal Report from Paul Creamer, Director of 
Finance/Treasurer, regarding litigation or potential litigation, including matters before 
administrative tribunals affecting the municipality or local board  and advice that is 
subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications necessary for that 
purpose–  Assessment Appeal. 

 
That staff proceed as directed. 

 
CARRIED 
 

(c) Confidential Verbal Report from Steve Goode, Fire Chief, regarding personal matters 
about an identifiable individual municipal or local board employees – Employee Matter. 
 
Resolution No. 2016-015:   Moved by Councillor Fielding and  
            Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 
That Council receive the Confidential Verbal Report from Steve Goode, Fire Chief, 
regarding personal matters about an identifiable individual municipal or local board 
employees – Employee Matter. 
 
CARRIED 

 
14. BY-LAWS:  

 
(a) A by-law to authorize the Mayor and Clerk to execute the Agreement with Calvary 

Baptist Church and Puslinch Minor Soccer Club.     
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
January 6, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 9 of 9 
 

 
Resolution 2016-016:    Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

     Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 

That the following By-law be taken as read three times and finally passed in open Council: 
 
(a) By-law 001/16 being a by-law to authorize the Mayor and Clerk to execute the 

Agreement with Calvary Baptist Church and Puslinch Minor Soccer Club.   
 

CARRIED 
 

    
15. CONFIRMING BY-LAW  

 
(a) By-Law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the Township of 

Puslinch  
 

Resolution 2016-017:     Moved by Councillor Roth and  
Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 

 
That the following By-law be taken as read three times and finally passed in open Council: 
 
(a) By-Law 002/16 being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation 

of the Township of Puslinch at its meeting held on the 6th day of January, 2016. 
 
CARRIED  

 
 
16.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 

Resolution No. 2016-018: Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
         Seconded by Councillor Fielding 

 
That Council hereby adjourns at 2:39 p.m. 
    
CARRIED 

 
   ________________________________________ 

    Dennis Lever, Mayor 
    

 ________________________________________ 
  Donna Tremblay, Acting Clerk 



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

 
  

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 
 

Proposed 2016 Operating and Capital Budget 
 
You are invited to attend a Public Information Meeting on January 21, 2016, as the Township of 
Puslinch is seeking your input and comments on the proposed 2016 Operating and Capital 
Budget. 
 
Your attendance and comments at this meeting are welcome as it is your opportunity to learn 
more about the proposed by-law and policies and express any opinions that you may have.  
 
 
Date:   Thursday, January 21, 2016 
Time:  7:00 p.m.  
Place:  Council Chambers, Township of Puslinch, 7404 Wellington Rd 34  
 
Additional Information: 
 
For further information or to obtain a copy of the proposed 2016 Operating and Capital Budget, 
please visit the Township’s website at www.puslinch.ca or contact the Township at (519)-763-
1226 ext. 222.  
 
 

































































































 

Wellington Source Water Protection is a municipal partnership between Township of Centre Wellington | Town of Erin | 
Guelph / Eramosa Township | Township of Mapleton | Town of Minto | Township of Puslinch  | Township of Wellington North  
| County of Wellington.  The purpose of the Clean Water Act is to protect existing and future sources of drinking water. 

Wellington Source Water Protection 

Risk Management Office 

7444 Wellington Road 21 

Elora, ON, N0B 1S0 

1-844-383-9800 

sourcewater@centrewellington.ca 

wellingtonwater.ca 

 

Page 1 of 8 
January 13, 2016 
 

 

January 13, 2015 
 
Township of Puslinch 2015 Risk Management Official Annual Report 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
This annual report is provided in accordance with Section 81 of the Clean Water Act, 
2006.  It outlines the activities undertaken by the Township of Puslinch in 2015 that 
were required by legislation, as well as a number of voluntary efforts intended to 
prepare for implementation of the Source Protection Plans and Part IV 
responsibilities.   
 
The Township of Puslinch is subject to two Source Protection Plans (based on 
watershed or conservation authority boundaries):  the Halton-Hamilton Plan and the 
Grand River Plan.  The Halton-Hamilton Plan came into legal effect on December 31, 
2015 while the Grand River Plan will come into legal effect on July 1, 2016.   
 
1.1 Background 

The Clean Water Act (2006) provides the framework for the development and 
implementation of watershed-based Source Protection Plans.  The Source Protection 
Plans identify the risks to municipal drinking water sources and establishes actions 
and policies to protect current and future sources of drinking water.  The policies 
apply within Wellhead Protection Areas (WHPA) and Intake Protection Zones (IPZ) 
established around municipal wells or intakes.   
 
Although the Township of Puslinch has no municipal drinking water systems of their 
own, the Wellhead Protection Areas (WHPA) from three adjoining municipalities 
enter into the Township and require protection by the Township: 

• City of Guelph 
• Cambridge (Regional Municipality of Waterloo);  
• City of Hamilton (Freelton);  
 

2.0 Summary of Municipal Implementation 
 
2.1 Appointment 
 
In November 2015, the Township of Puslinch passed by-law 62-15 to appoint a Risk 
Management Official and Inspector (RMO and RMI) and an alternate.   
 

mailto:sourcewater@centrewellington.ca


 

Wellington Source Water Protection is a municipal partnership between Township of Centre Wellington | Town of Erin | 
Guelph / Eramosa Township | Township of Mapleton | Town of Minto | Township of Puslinch  | Township of Wellington North  
| County of Wellington.  The purpose of the Clean Water Act is to protect existing and future sources of drinking water. 

Wellington Source Water Protection 

Risk Management Office 

7444 Wellington Road 21 

Elora, ON, N0B 1S0 

1-844-383-9800 

sourcewater@centrewellington.ca 

wellingtonwater.ca 

 

Page 2 of 8 
January 13, 2016 
 

 

2.2 Education and Outreach 
 
In 2015, a County wide, five year communications plan was completed to ensure 
consistent, County wide communications for source protection implementation.  
The communication plan outlines a five year plan that meets and exceeds the source 
protection plan requirements for education and outreach.   
 
Highlights from 2015 included the development of five (5) County specific fact 
sheets on source protection on the following topics:  General fact sheet on source 
protection in Wellington County, Septic systems, Commercial and Industrial, 
Agricultural and Residential requirements.  Additional work completed under the 
Communications Plan included the design and launch of a common logo for use 
County wide and the branding of the Wellington County source protection program 
as Wellington Source Water Protection.  One event was also held in the Township:  a 
Septic Social event for the residents in the Township that require mandatory septic 
inspections.  Total attendance at the event was approximately 15 to 20 people. 
 
A website, www.wellingtonwater.ca was also launched on April 1, 2015 to serve as a 
central online site for source protection in Wellington County.  Our website serves as 
a link to the five Source Protection Plan websites, our municipal websites, the 
provincial source protection website as well as provides specific information to 
Township and County residents on the source protection program in Wellington 
County. 
 
Staff responded to inquiries from Township property owners within the Grand River 
Source Protection Plan area regarding their properties and potential requirements 
under the Clean Water Act. 
 
Outreach to the agricultural properties, including a presentation to the Wellington 
Chapter of the Ontario Federation of Agriculture, started in 2015 and will continue in 
2016.  This is within the Grand River Source Protection Plan area. 
 
2.3 Risk Management Plans 
 
No inspections or risk management plan negotiations were conducted within either 
the Grand River or Halton-Hamilton Source Protection Plan areas. 
 
 
 
 

mailto:sourcewater@centrewellington.ca
http://www.wellingtonwater.ca/


 

Wellington Source Water Protection is a municipal partnership between Township of Centre Wellington | Town of Erin | 
Guelph / Eramosa Township | Township of Mapleton | Town of Minto | Township of Puslinch  | Township of Wellington North  
| County of Wellington.  The purpose of the Clean Water Act is to protect existing and future sources of drinking water. 

Wellington Source Water Protection 

Risk Management Office 

7444 Wellington Road 21 

Elora, ON, N0B 1S0 

1-844-383-9800 

sourcewater@centrewellington.ca 

wellingtonwater.ca 

 

Page 3 of 8 
January 13, 2016 
 

 

2.4 Threat Verification 
 
In 2015, analysis continued within the Grand River and Halton-Hamilton Source 
Protection Plan areas to identify properties where significant drinking water threat 
activities may be occurring.  The analysis included air photo and GIS analysis 
including the analysis of additional data obtained from Union Gas on natural gas 
connections, and data from the Province on nutrient management plan approvals. 
 
An environmental consultant, R.J. Burnside and Assoicates, was hired to conduct site 
visits within the Township of Puslinch, Township of Mapleton, Town of Erin, 
Township of Centre Wellington and Township of Wellington North.  The purpose of 
the site visits is to provide education to commercial / industrial / institutional 
property owners that have been idenitified as potentially containing threat activities 
and to verify whether the threat activities are present at the property (ie fuel 
handling, chemical storage).  The site visits began in late 2015 and will continue into 
2016.  There are seven properties identified within the Grand River Source 
Protection Plan area and one property within the Halton-Hamilton Source Protection 
Plan area. 
 
2.5 Planning Application Review 
 
The Grand River Source Protection Plan was not in effect in 2015 and the Halton-
Hamilton Source Protection Plan came into effect on the last day of 2015, therefore 
no Section 59 notices were issued for 2015. 
 
In 2015, the County of Wellington online mapping system (Geocortex) was updated 
to display the well head protection areas on the internal, staff website.  This 
mapping is critical for screening of development applications.  The public facing 
mapping on the County website is rolling out as the Source Protection Plans become 
effective or shortly after, therefore the mapping for the Township will be available in 
2016. 
 
In conjunction with the issuance of Section 59 notices, a source protection screening 
form was developed and will be utilized for applicants to provide information on 
their application as it relates to the activities regulated under the Clean Water Act. 
The building and planning forms have also been updated to reflect the Clean Water 
Act. Additional guidance material is also being developed County wide for roll out in 
2016 including an additional fact sheet related to source protection and planning or 
building applications, a dedicated page on the website, a business process flow chart 
and detailed screening aids. 

mailto:sourcewater@centrewellington.ca


 

Wellington Source Water Protection is a municipal partnership between Township of Centre Wellington | Town of Erin | 
Guelph / Eramosa Township | Township of Mapleton | Town of Minto | Township of Puslinch  | Township of Wellington North  
| County of Wellington.  The purpose of the Clean Water Act is to protect existing and future sources of drinking water. 

Wellington Source Water Protection 

Risk Management Office 

7444 Wellington Road 21 

Elora, ON, N0B 1S0 

1-844-383-9800 

sourcewater@centrewellington.ca 

wellingtonwater.ca 

 

Page 4 of 8 
January 13, 2016 
 

 

 
One training session was completed for Township and County Building and Planning 
staff on source protection, the Clean Water Act and the business process for 
screening development applications.  A separate training session was also 
completed for County Planning and Land Division staff on the same subject matter. 
 
2.6 Transport Pathways 
 
In 2015, no transport pathways requiring notification were identified. 
 
2.7 Official Plan Amendment 
 
In 2015, the County of Wellington retained a planning consultant and the following 
were delivered: staff workshop (County and local municipal staff) to discuss options 
and preferred approaches to Official Plan policies and Zoning; a Background Report 
setting out the preferred approaches and rationale; and preparation of a Draft 
Official Plan Amendment to bring the County Official Plan into conformity with the 
source protection plans.  This work will continue in 2016 and is needed to conform 
with all 5 Source Protection Plans in the County. 
 
2.8 Data Management 
 
In 2015, staff were involved in design and development of the Local Source Water 
Information Management System (LSWIMS) database to develop a data 
management and storage solution to assist Wellington County municipalities in 
administering and reporting on municipal activities under the Clean Water Act.  This 
database is a partnership between the eight Wellington County municipalities, the 
Grand River Conservation Authority, the Upper Thames River Conservation 
Authority, Oxford County and the City of Guelph.  Work completed in 2015 included 
the negotiation of the Collaboration Agreement between the database partners (the 
legal framework to administer the database); and development of the initial phase 
of the LSWIMS database.  The LSWIMS Collaboration Agreement is being presented 
to Township Council for their approval in early 2016.  It is anticipated that the 
LSWIMS database will be operational in 2016. 
 
In addition to the LSWIMS database, Wellington Source Water Protection has 
established a shared network drive for all eight Wellington County municipalities to 
use in implementing source protection.  The network drive became active in late 
2015 and work will continue in 2016 to move the shared files to this drive. 
 

mailto:sourcewater@centrewellington.ca


 

Wellington Source Water Protection is a municipal partnership between Township of Centre Wellington | Town of Erin | 
Guelph / Eramosa Township | Township of Mapleton | Town of Minto | Township of Puslinch  | Township of Wellington North  
| County of Wellington.  The purpose of the Clean Water Act is to protect existing and future sources of drinking water. 

Wellington Source Water Protection 

Risk Management Office 

7444 Wellington Road 21 

Elora, ON, N0B 1S0 

1-844-383-9800 

sourcewater@centrewellington.ca 

wellingtonwater.ca 

 

Page 5 of 8 
January 13, 2016 
 

 

 
2.9 Source Protection Plan Comments 
 
In 2015, Wellington Source Water Protection and the County of Wellington, on 
behalf of the Wellington County Grand River municipalities, provided comments and 
assisted Lake Erie Source Protection Authority staff in making edits in the Wellington 
Chapter of the Grand River Source Protection Plan for consistency.  Comments were 
also provided to the Halton-Hamilton Source Protection Committee on the proposed 
Halton-Hamilton Source Protection Plan in January 2015.  
 
2.10 Septic Inspections 
 
In 2015, the Wellington County municipalities under Wellington Source Water 
Protection hired WSP Canada Inc. to conduct a mandatory septic inspection program 
as required by the Clean Water Act, Ontario Building Code and the Source Protection 
Plans.  If a septic system is present within well head protection area with a 
vulnerability score of 10 or within an issues contributing area for nitrates, a septic 
inspection is required every 5 years as the septic system is classified as a significant 
drinking water threat.  WSP Canada has been hired for 2015 through 2017 to 
complete the initial septic system inspections for the Town of Erin, Guelph / 
Eramosa Township, Township of Puslinch, Township of Centre Wellington and 
Township of Wellington North.  Following the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and 
Housing recommendations, the WSP Canada septic inspection program is a hybrid 
Phase I and II inspection.  Letters and information packages were mailed out to the 
properties requiring septic inspections by the Township and WSP.  Information 
packages and fact sheets were left with each property owner following the 
completion of the inspection. 

 

In 2015, staff and / or WSP Canada completed 45 of 54 septic inspections within the 
Township of Puslinch.  All inspections are within the Grand River Source Protection 
Plan area.  The inspections are conducted under the authority of the Ontario 
Building Code and 12 remedial action letters were issued in Township of Puslinch.  
The following table summarizes the types of deficiencies noted during the septic 
inspections. 

 
 
 

mailto:sourcewater@centrewellington.ca


 

Wellington Source Water Protection is a municipal partnership between Township of Centre Wellington | Town of Erin | 
Guelph / Eramosa Township | Township of Mapleton | Town of Minto | Township of Puslinch  | Township of Wellington North  
| County of Wellington.  The purpose of the Clean Water Act is to protect existing and future sources of drinking water. 

Wellington Source Water Protection 

Risk Management Office 

7444 Wellington Road 21 

Elora, ON, N0B 1S0 

1-844-383-9800 

sourcewater@centrewellington.ca 

wellingtonwater.ca 

 

Page 6 of 8 
January 13, 2016 
 

 

 
Summary of Deficiencies Noted During 2015 Septic Inspection Program 

  Puslinch 

Pump out septic tank 10 
Enter into a servicing agreement 1 
Pump out septic tank / servicing agreement   
Repair / Replace tank lid   
No high level alarm   
Investigate structural integrity of septic tank   
Investigate outlet pipe and leaching bed   
Restore access to septic tank   
Remove mature tree from leaching bed   
Remove driveway from leaching bed 1 
Remove mature tree and pump out tank   
Remove driveway and pump out   
Septic tank is not water tight and pump out   
Total 12 
 

A total of 11 of the 12 deficiencies noted are related to regular maintenance of a 
septic system such as pumping out the septic tank (10 of 12) or entering into a 
servicing agreement for an advanced septic system (1 of 12).  The remaining 
deficiency is regarding the removal of trees or hard structures (ie driveways, parking 
lots) from leaching bed. 

 
2.11 Guelph – Guelph / Eramosa Tier 3 Study 
 
In 2015, Wellington Source Water Protection, Township and County staff and the 
Township hydrogeological consultant participated in a technical working group 
headed by the Grand River Conservation Authority regarding the ongoing Tier 3, 
water quantity study for the Guelph and Guelph / Eramosa water systems.  Peer 
review comments were provided by the Township hydrogeological consultant and 
work continues on this study in 2016. 
 
2.12 Working Groups 
 

mailto:sourcewater@centrewellington.ca


 

Wellington Source Water Protection is a municipal partnership between Township of Centre Wellington | Town of Erin | 
Guelph / Eramosa Township | Township of Mapleton | Town of Minto | Township of Puslinch  | Township of Wellington North  
| County of Wellington.  The purpose of the Clean Water Act is to protect existing and future sources of drinking water. 

Wellington Source Water Protection 

Risk Management Office 

7444 Wellington Road 21 

Elora, ON, N0B 1S0 

1-844-383-9800 

sourcewater@centrewellington.ca 

wellingtonwater.ca 

 

Page 7 of 8 
January 13, 2016 
 

 

To ensure a consistent and efficient delivery of source protection across the County 
of Wellington, the eight Wellington County municipalities (the seven local 
municipalities and the County) agreed to a delivery model where the Risk 
Management Official (RMO) function is delivered collectively through one, shared 
RMO.  This delivery model was approved by County Council in 2012 and endorsed by 
the seven, local municipal Councils in 2013.  The shared RMO started in October 
2013.  The shared RMO chairs a working group comprised of water, building and / or 
planning staff from the eight Wellington County municipalities.  The working group 
meets monthly and makes decisions collaboratively on source protection 
implementation within Wellington County.  The Township of Puslinch representative 
is Robert Kelly.  The accomplishments outlined above are the result of the hard work 
of the working group. 
 
The shared RMO (Kyle Davis) continues to represent the Wellington County 
municipalities at a number of provincial and watershed level working groups 
including the Lake Erie Implementation Working Group, the Halton-Hamilton RMO 
working group and the provincial RMO / municipal working group.  All of these 
working groups held meetings in 2015. 
 
Discussions were held between Township and County staff, the shared RMO and 
staff from adjoining municipalities regarding source protection implementation and 
Township / County efforts to protect the adjoining municipalities’ well head 
protection areas and / or intake protection zones.  Discussions were held with the 
Region of Waterloo and the City of Guelph.  Work is underway on a memorandum of 
understanding with the City of Guelph. 
 
3.0 Mandatory Reporting Requirements 
 
As per Section 65 of Ontario Regulation 287 / 07 under the Clean Water Act, the 
attached tables outline the mandatory reporting requirements.  The tables will also 
be submitted to the Source Protection Authorities in Microsoft Excel format for data 
management purposes. 
 
  

mailto:sourcewater@centrewellington.ca


 

Wellington Source Water Protection is a municipal partnership between Township of Centre Wellington | Town of Erin | 
Guelph / Eramosa Township | Township of Mapleton | Town of Minto | Township of Puslinch  | Township of Wellington North  
| County of Wellington.  The purpose of the Clean Water Act is to protect existing and future sources of drinking water. 

Wellington Source Water Protection 

Risk Management Office 

7444 Wellington Road 21 

Elora, ON, N0B 1S0 

1-844-383-9800 

sourcewater@centrewellington.ca 

wellingtonwater.ca 

 

Page 8 of 8 
January 13, 2016 
 

 

4.0 Closure 
 
For further information on this report, please contact the undersigned. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted by: 
 
 
 
 
Kyle Davis 
Risk Management Official / Inspector 
Wellington Source Water Protection – Township of Puslinch 
 
 
Attachments 
 
Tables for Reporting under Section 65, Ontario Regulation 287 / 07, Clean Water Act  
 
 
 

mailto:sourcewater@centrewellington.ca




































































































REPORT ADM-2016-001 

 

TO:   Mayor and Members of Council 

FROM:  Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk 

MEETING DATE:   January 20, 2016 

SUBJECT: Mini Lakes Residents Association – Condominium 
Development Agreement - Condominium Plan 214 

 File No. L04MIN 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Report ADM-2016-001 regarding Mini Lakes Residents Association – 
Condominium Development Agreement – Condominium Plan 214 – Reduction of 
Securities be received; and  
 
That Council authorize the reduction of securities held from $159,552.00 to 
$131,838.75. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Purpose 

Staff is seeking authorization from Council to reduce the securities in the amount of 
$159,552.00 to $131,838.75 (Certified Funds). 

Background 

Mini Lakes – Plan of Subdivision Plan 61M-203 and Condominium Plan 214 is a 
residential development located south of Wellington Road 34 and east of Brock Road as 
shown on Schedule “A”.   
 
Condominium Agreement 
 
The Condominium Agreement was registered on December 15, 2014 as Instrument No. 
WC422451. 
 
 
Letter of Credit – Securities 
 
Securities in accordance with section 15 and Schedule D were provided to the 
Township in the amount of $159,522.00 by Benninger Holdings Inc. 



REPORT NO. ADM-2016-001 
Page 2 of 4 

 
 
The securities are held to construct the services attributable to services to be 
constructed in Phase 3 of the Condominium Development as follows: 
 
Rear Yard Storm Drains    $  13,000.00 
Sanitary Sewers Works    $            0.00 
Road Works      $  71,480.00 
Water Works     $            0.00 
Electrical      $   43,000.00 
Contingency Allowance    $     5,724.00 
 
Subtotal “A”     $133,204.00 
 
Engineering and Inspection (6% of “A”) $    7,992.00 
 
Subtotal “B”     $141,196.00 
GST (6% of B)     $  18,356.00 
 
Total Estimated Cost    $159,522.00 
 
Request for Reduction of Securities 
 
Mike Kachur on behalf of Benninger Holdings Inc. has requested a reduction in the 
securities held for works completed to date. 
 
Securities 
 
The Township’s consulting Engineers and the Developer’s Engineers have provided the 
appropriate reviews (Schedules B and C).  The Township’s Engineer recommends a 
reduction in the securities held by $27,713.25. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Upon approval by Council, staff will issue a cheque in the amount of $27,713.26. 
 
Applicable Legislation and Requirements 

Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, as amended 
Condominium Agreement 
  



REPORT NO. ADM-2016-001 
Page 3 of 4 

 
 
Attachments 

Schedule A - Aerial of lands 
Schedule B – Cost Estimate to Complete Remaining Site Work prepared by Braun 
Consulting Engineers dated December 8, 2015 – Engineer for the Developer 
Schedule C – Correspondence from GM BluePlan dated January 6, 2016, Township’s 
Engineer regarding Request for Reduction in Securities Letter of Credit - $99,500.00 
  



REPORT NO. ADM-2016-001 
Page 4 of 4 

 
Schedule A – Aerial of Lands 
 

 
 



Schedule B - Report ADM-2016-001 



Schedule C - Report ADM-2016-001
 



 

PLANNING REPORT  
for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

Prepared by the County of Wellington Planning and Development Department 

DATE: January 11, 2016 
TO: Kelly Patzer, Development Coordinator 

Township of Puslinch 
FROM:  Sarah Wilhelm, Senior Planner 

County of Wellington 
SUBJECT: SECOND REVIEW D14/FRO (Frosch) 

Zoning By-law Amendment 
6525 Concession 1 (Part Lots 1, 2 & 3, Gore Concession), Puslinch 

 
SUMMARY 
This zoning by-law amendment is consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement and generally 
conforms to the Provincial Growth Plan and the County Official Plan. There were no public or agency 
concerns raised during the circulation or at the public meeting. The application would satisfy a condition 
of severance B32/15.   
 
The amending by-law has been structured so that it is clear about where the existing barn is located on 
the property and flexible in allowing future livestock facilities on the balance of the farm. If the 
amending by-law is approved by Council, notification should be provided in accordance with the 
Planning Act. 
  
Thank you for your request to prepare a Draft Amending By-law for the above-noted application. In our 
comments of October 1, 2015 we provided a policy review for Council’s consideration. This report offers 
our planning opinion and draft amending by-law. 
 
PROPOSAL  
The purpose of the proposed zoning by-law amendment is to rezone the property to achieve Minimum 
Distance Separation (MDS I) compliance from an existing vacant bank barn to a new residential lot. The 
new lot will be occupied by an existing dwelling previously used for farm help. By separating this second 
dwelling from the farm, a farm help house which is no longer needed on the farm will be brought into 
conformity with the zoning by-law.   
 
CONSULTATION 
A public meeting was held on October 21, 2015. Only one member of the public spoke and was in 
support of the proposed zoning by-law amendment. There were no agency concerns. In an e-mail of 
December 11, 2015 the Township’s Chief Building Official indicated that he no longer has concerns with 
the application. In a letter of December 7, 2015, the applicant’s agent (Jeff Buisman) has attempted to 
address the concerns raised by Council at the public meeting.  
 
DISCUSSION  
Questions have been raised about whether a zoning by-law amendment is the best way to address 
Minimum Distance Separation I (MDS I) requirements. In the past, demolition of the barn has been 
required, and later, change of use permit. While a warning clause was suggested, we agree with Mr. 
Buisman’s response that a restriction cannot be registered on title. Our comments regarding the 
rezoning approach follow in the next section. 



 
PLANNING REPORT for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH   
Second Review, D14/FRO (Frosch) 
January 11, 2016  Page 2 

 
Rezoning 
Rezoning has been used across the County in recent years for this type of MDS issue. We have consulted 
Carol Neumann of OMAFRA who reconfirmed rezoning as an appropriate approach. As stated in our 
earlier report on this matter, as part of the provincial update of the Minimum Distance Separation 
Implementation Guidelines the guidelines are proposed to more specifically provide for MDS I setback 
exemption when “the lot on which the unoccupied livestock barn is located is rezoned to preclude a 
livestock facility as a permitted use.” In our opinion, rezoning is the best mechanism to address MDS I 
compliance for this severance application because it carries with the land, allows for an agricultural 
building with heritage value to be retained and is consistent with direction from OMAFRA.  
 
Figure 1 Proposed Approach to Rezoning 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
PLANNING REPORT for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH   
Second Review, D14/FRO (Frosch) 
January 11, 2016  Page 3 

We would also like to address two technical aspects of the rezoning:  
 

• clarity of the amending by-law for future enforcement and interpretation, and 
• flexibility of the amending by-law for future agricultural operations. 

 
We have considered Township staff concerns about our previous approach to rezoning in this situation, 
which has been to rezone the barn to prohibit livestock. To make things more clear, we would suggest:  
 

• a site specific provision to prohibit a livestock facility on the portion of the property where the 
barn is situated and including lands between the barn and the limit of the new residential lot 

 
In this case, the “livestock facility” definition in the MDS Implementation Guidelines would apply 
 
We are also aware of Council and PDAC concerns about the need to preserve flexibility for future 
agricultural operations on the balance of the farm. We considered the potential of zoning the MDS I arc, 
but due to the variability of MDS distances and possible changes to the formulae in the works, we would 
suggest: 
 

• a site specific provision on the balance of the farm (with the exception of NE Zoned areas) to 
make it clear that Minimum Distance Separation II (MDS II) shall apply to livestock facilities 

 
This provision would make it clear that livestock facilities may be considered on the rest of the farm 
provided that MDS II requirements are met.  
 
PLANNING OPINION 
In our opinion, the proposed rezoning of the subject land to achieve MDS I compliance from an existing 
vacant bank barn is consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement and generally conforms to the 
Provincial Growth Plan and the County Official Plan. This rezoning would satisfy a condition of severance 
B32/15, which was provisionally approved by the County Land Division Committee. Conditions must be 
fulfilled by June 17, 2016. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
If the amending by-law is approved by Council, notification should be provided in accordance with the 
Planning Act. 
 

Respectfully submitted 

County of Wellington Planning and Development Department  
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Sarah Wilhelm, BES, MCIP, RPP 
Senior Planner  











 Committee of Adjustment Meeting 
December 8, 2015 

7:00 pm 
Council Chambers, Aberfoyle 

 
MINUTES 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: 
John Sepulis, Chair 
Councilor Ken Roth 
Dennis O’Connor 
Dianne Paron 
Robin Wayne 
 
 
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE:  
Kelly Patzer – Development Coordinator 
Sarah Wilhelm – County of Wellington 
Nancy Shoemaker 
 
1.  OPENING REMARKS 

• The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm. The Chair welcomed the gallery to the 
Committee of Adjustment meeting and informed the gallery there were no 
applications for this meeting. 

2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST 
• Dianne Paron declared pecuniary interest regarding the minutes of the November 

10, 2015 meeting. 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 Moved by Robin Wayne, Seconded by Dennis O’Connor, 

• That the minutes of the Committee of Adjustment meeting held Tuesday November 
3rd, 2015 be adopted. 

CARRIED 
 Moved by Ken Roth, Seconded by Robin Wayne. 

• That the minutes of the Committee of Adjustment meeting held Tuesday November 
10th, 2015 be adopted. 

CARRIED 
 

 
4. COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT – Applications for Minor Variance 

• None 

5. ADJOURNMENT 
• The Committee of Adjustment meeting adjourned at 7:01 p.m. 

 



Planning & Development Advisory Committee Meeting 
December 8, 2015 

7:00 pm 
Council Chambers, Aberfoyle 

 
 

MINUTES 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: 
John Sepulis, Chair 
Councillor Ken Roth 
Dennis O’Connor 
Dianne Paron 
Robin Wayne 
 
 
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE:  
Kelly Patzer – Development Coordinator 
Sarah Wilhelm – County of Wellington 
Nancy Shoemaker, BSRD
Jeff Buisman, Van Harten Surveying 
Anna Vera 
 
1. - 5. COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT 

• See December 8, 2015 Committee of Adjustment Minutes 

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS 
 
6.  OPENING REMARKS 

• The Chair advised the gallery that the following portion of the Committee meeting will 
be reviewing and commenting on planning development applications.  

7. DISCLOSUE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST 
• None 

8. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
• Moved by Ken Roth, Seconded by Dennis O’Connor 
• That the minutes of the Tuesday November 3rd, 2015 Planning & Development 

Advisory Committee Meeting are hereby adopted. 
CARRIED 

 
9. APPLICATIONS FOR SITE PLAN URBAN DESIGN REVIEW 

• None 
 
10. ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENTS 
 
10(a) Zoning Amendment Application D14/COL - Brad Coles, Part Lot 8, Concession 2, 

municipally known as 6691 Ellis Road. 
 
Proposed site specific zoning amendment to permit the construction and operation of 
a small scale commercial Label making business. 
 
The owner currently operates a home occupation for the same business on his 
property and was granted a minor variance in 2006 to permit having three off-site 
employees for the home occupation. He is proposing to rezone a portion of the 
property and sever it, to build a new building for the business to make it stand-alone 
from his residential property (Agricultural Zone). It is to remain a small scale 
commercial operation. 
 

• Brad Coles, owner of the property and business, stated he currently operates his 
label making business from his house and shop on the property. He has recently 
acquired a small business in Cambridge with new equipment and 2 new employees 
and wishes to make the business stand-alone from his residential property.  



 2 

• Dianne Paron asked if the minor variance would still apply on the retained lands. 
• Ken Roth indicated he would not be supportive of removing the home occupation 

use, but noted there is the provision to have thee off-site employees on the property. 
• Brad Coles noted the existing shop would be for his own personal use and not be 

used for his business anymore.  
• Sarah Wilhelm indicated that the rezoning could possibly address the issue. 
• Robin Wayne asked if the severed parcel would have a dwelling 
• Sarah Wilhelm noted the application is requesting the main use of the property to be 

the commercial business 
 
Moved by Dianne Paron, Seconded by Ken Roth that the following comments be 
received by staff for Zoning Amendment file D14/COL: 

• Note that the Minor Variance for the additional employees on the retained 
parcel would no longer be required. 

• PDAC supports the rezoning application. 
CARRIED 

 
10(b) Zoning Amendment Application D14/TSO – Tsounis Capital Investments Ltd., 

Part Lot 16, Plan 119, municipally known as 40 Brock Road S. 
 
 Proposed amendment of the Hamlet Residential (HR) Zone to a Specialized Hamlet 

Commercial (C1-_) Zone to permit a personal service (esthetics) establishment 
including accessory retail sales. 

 
• Nancy Tsounis, owner of the property, indicated that she purchased the property to 

operate a spa from the house that would provide services such as skincare, facials, 
massages, manicures and pedicures. Minimal renovations would need to be 
completed on the interior or exterior of the house. 

• Robin Wayne inquired if the house was wheelchair accessible and noted that all 
commercial buildings are required to be fully accessible by the year 2025. 

• Robin Wayne noted fencing is a requirement between commercial and residential 
properties and asked how many employees would be working for the business. 

• Nancy Tsounis indicated there would be fencing between the properties and stated 
there would be 2-3 employees, with 1 or 2 customers attending at a time. 

• Robin Wayne responded that there would not be adequate parking based on the 
plan shown and the amount of employees proposed. 

• Nancy Tsounis indicated that the deck may need to be removed to provide more 
parking. 

• Ken Roth remarked that the parking and buffer requirements in the zoning by-law for 
the proposed commercial use would need to be determined. 

• Sarah Wilhelm indicated that a proposed reduction in parking and landscape buffer 
would require a minor variance. 

• Dianne Paron asked how there would be only one customer at a time but 3 
employees? 

• Nancy Tsounis indicated one employee would be working in the office as an 
assistant answering phones and maintaining the building. 
 
Moved by Dianne Paron, Seconded by Dennis O’Connor that the following 
comments be received by staff for Zoning Amendment file D14/TSO: 

• Note that commercial businesses will be required to be fully assessable by 2015 
• Variances may be required to have the property conform to the zoning by-law for 

a commercial use.  
• PDAC supports the rezoning application. 

CARRIED 
    

11. LAND DIVISION  
 
11(a) Severance Application B103/15 (D10/BEN) – Albert & Doris Bennett, Part Lot 16, 

Concession 9, municipally known as 7635 Maltby Road. 
 
 Proposed severance is 95 m frontage x 90.82 m = 0.8627 hectares, vacant land for 



 3 

proposed rural residential use 
  
 Retained parcel is 28.06 hectares with 515.79 m frontage on Maltby Road and 405.2 

m frontage on Victoria Road S, existing and proposed rural residential and 
agricultural use with existing dwelling, 2 drive sheds, a market garden and a chicken 
coop. 

  
 Moved by Dennis O’Connor, Seconded by Robin Wayne that the following 

comments are forwarded to the County of Wellington Land Division Committee: 

• No comment 
CARRIED 

11(b) Lot Line Adjustment Application B108/15 (D10/SUG) – Sugarlips Candy 
Company Ltd. c/o Juliet Wyk, Concession 2, Part Lot 5, municipally known as 30 
Lake Road. 

 
 Proposed lot line adjustment is 503 square metres with no frontage, vacant land to 

be added to abutting residential lot 
 
 Retained parcel is 1049.6 square metres with 12.192 m frontage, existing vacant 

residential lot. 
 

Moved by Ken Roth, Seconded by Dianne Paron that the following comments be 
forwarded to the County of Wellington Land Division Committee: 

• Note that a Minor Variance would be required for the retained parcel. 
• Note that #29 stated there was an attachment without one being provided. 
• No comments. 

CARRIED 

11(c) Severance Application B112/15 (D10/BAT) – James & Christine Bates, Part Lot 6, 
East of Blind Line, Registered Plan 131, municipally known as 211 Carter Road. 

 
 Proposed severance is 80m frontage x 248m = 2 hectares, existing forest and 

reforested trees for proposed rural residential and organic farming. 
 
 Retained parcel is 7.3 hectares with 284m frontage, existing and proposed rural 

residential and forest with existing dwelling. 
 
• Jeff Buisman noted the proposed severance is a 2 hectare parcel that the owner’s 

nephew will be purchasing to build a house and have an organic farm for maple 
syrup and mushrooms, with some small animals including goats. There is an 
adjacent barn that does not appear to have MDS issues. 

• Dianne Paron stated that is a unique use of the land. 
• John Sepulis inquired if raising goats triggers any MDS issue and noted #31-33 of 

the application were not completed. 
• Sarah Wilhelm responded that it is still a residential lot with agricultural zoning and 

all zoning policies would apply, including maximum permitted livestock units. 
 

Moved by Robin Wayne, Seconded by Dennis O’Connor that the following 
comments be forwarded to the County of Wellington Land Division Committee: 
 
• No Comments 

CARRIED 

11(d) Severance (Easement) Application B114/15 (D10/WIL) – Jay Wilson, Part Lot 6, 
Concession 5, municipally known as 4783 Wellington Rd 32. 

 
 Proposed easement is 485 square metres with 2m frontage in favour of the retained 

lands for existing hydro lines. 

• Jeff Buisman noted the hydro easement would be in favour of the retained lands. 
• Robin Wayne indicated that the severance is creating a flag shaped lot and 

inquired if a minor variance would be required. 



 4 

• Jeff Buisman replied that a variance would be required for the frontage of the 
retained parcel 

• Ken Roth noted the easement could limit the use of the parcel for a future 
property owner. 

• John Sepulis inquired if the hydro could be relocated to not encumber the 
proposed parcel. 

• Jeff Buisman noted the person who purchases the property may not deem it a 
negative feature and estimates the cost of relocating hydro can range from 
$10,000 - $40,000 depending on a number of factors. 

• Dianne Paron asked if the owner could put in new poles and remove the 
easement. 

• Jeff Buisman remarked it could be done but is not desirable by the owner. 
 

Moved by Robin Wayne, Seconded by Dennis O’Connor that the following 
comments be forwarded to the County of Wellington Land Division Committee: 
 
• Committee does not support easement 

CARRIED 
 
11(e) Severance Application B115/15 (D10/WIL) – Jay Wilson, Part Lot 6, Concession 5, 

municipally known as 4783 Wellington Rd 32. 
 
 Proposed severance is 49m frontage x 80m = 0.4 hectares, vacant land for proposed 

rural residential use, together with proposed easement for existing hydro lines 
(B114/15). 

 
 Retained parcel is 4.2 hectares with 27m frontage, existing and proposed rural 

residential with existing dwelling and shed. 
 

Moved by Ken Roth, Seconded by Robin Wayne that the following comments be 
forwarded to the County of Wellington Land Division Committee: 
 
• Parcel should not be encumbered by the hydro easement 
• Minor Variance is required for reduced frontage on retained parcel. 

CARRIED 
 
11(f) Severance (Easement) Application B116/15 (D10/VER) – Anna & Javier Vera, 

Part Lot 18, Concession 4, municipally known as 6964 Concession 4. 
 
 Proposed easement is 400 square metres with 6m frontage in favour of the retained 

lands for existing hydro lines. 
 

• Jeff Buisman remarked extensive work has been completed on the wetland 
boundary and the grand river Conservation Authority together with the EIS 
consultant deemed the location of the parcel and dwelling. The EIS consultant did 
not want the driveway to go to the rear of the property as well. The septic that is 
shown in the sketch does not need to be within the easement an can be relocated 
and the location of the hydro line is not an ominous encroachment. 

• Dennis O’Connor asked who maintains the trees to provide clearance in the 
easement 

• Anna Vera, owner of the property, stated she is giving the parcel to her daughter 
to build a house on and the proposed development is closer to the road to protect 
the trees on the property. There are solar panels on her house and the hydro 
easement accommodates a solar connection that brings power back to the grid. 

• John Sepulis noted to be consistent when severing land, it should be done with 
the least amount of encumbrances. The Hyrdo line could follow the existing 
driveway. 

• Ken Roth remarked that when severing a lot there shouldn’t be easements in 
favour of a retained lot when there are remedies that can be completed  to avoid 
an easement 
 

Moved by Ken Roth, Seconded by Dianne Paron that the following comments be 
forwarded to the County of Wellington Land Division Committee: 



 5 

 
• Committee does not support easement 

CARRIED 
 
11(g) Severance (Easement) Application B117/15 (D10/VER) – Anna & Javier Vera, 

Part Lot 18, Concession 4, municipally known as 6964 Concession 4. 
 
 Proposed severance is 0.41 hectares with 76m frontage, existing forest and bush for 

proposed rural residential use, together with proposed easement to benefit retained 
lands for existing hydro lines (B116/15). 

 
 Retained parcel is 7.2 hectares with 29m frontage, existing and proposed rural 

residential and agricultural use with existing dwelling and garage. 
 

Moved by Robin Wayne, Seconded by Ken Roth that the following comments be 
forwarded to the County of Wellington Land Division Committee: 
 
• Parcel should not be encumbered by the hydro easement; consider adjusting 

property lines to not include hydro pole in the rear of the property or the easement 
• Applicant is amenable to revise the boundaries to not include the easement 

CARRIED 
 
12. OTHER MATTERS 
 

• John Sepulis thanked Robin Wayne for her years of service on the Planning 
Committee. 

• John Sepulis requested that decisions of the Land Division Committee be included 
as attachments on future agendas. 

13. CLOSED MEETING  

• No matters 

14. FUTURE MEETINGS  

• Next Regular Meeting Tuesday January 12, 2016 @ 7:00 p.m. 

15. ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by Dennis O’Conner and Seconded by Ken Roth, 
• That the Planning & Development Advisory Committee adjourns at 8:03 p.m. 

CARRIED 










	C03- January 20, 2016 -  Council Agenda
	2016 01 06- Regular Meeting
	Notice of Public Meeting - 2016 Proposed Budget
	Communications
	Item 6.1(a)
	Item 6.2(a)
	Item 6.2(b)
	Item 6.2(c)
	Item 6.3(a)
	Item 6.4(a)
	Item 6.4(b)
	Item 6.4(c)
	Item 6.5(a)
	Item 6.6(a)

	Intergovernmental Items
	IG#1
	IG#2
	IG#3
	IG#4
	IG#5
	IG#6
	IG#7
	IG#8
	IG#9
	IG#10
	IG#11

	Untitled
	Reports 
	Report ADM-2016-001 - Mini Lakes Residents Association – Condominium Development Agreement - Condominium Plan 214
	County of Wellington Planning and Development Department Report regarding Second Review D14/FRO (Frosch) - Zoning By-Law Amendment - 6525 Concession 1 (Part Lots 1, 2, & 3, Gore Concession), Puslinch 
	Chief Building Official Report - December 2015

	Committee Minutes
	2015 12 08 - Committee of Adjustment Minutes
	2015 12 08 - Planning & Development Advisory Commitee Meeting Minutes

	By-Laws
	14(a)
	14(b)
	15




